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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: Hari Om Chambers, 3rd Floor, Veera lad!. Estate, New Link
Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 053.
CIN: U55100MH1997PTC105663. Email: shipl@speciality.co.in.
Tel No. 02242525000

The financial details of companies as per the Audited Statement of Accounts:
Name of the Company: Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Particulars

Equity Paid up Capital
Reserves and surplus
Carry forward losses
Net Worth
Miscellaneous Expenditure
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans
Fixed Assets
Income from Operations
Total Income
Total Expenditure
Profit! (Loss) before Tax
Profit! (Loss) after Tax
Cash profit
EPS
Book value

As per Audited
Financials as on
30-09-2022
(Z)

As per last Audited 1 year prior to
Financial Year
the last Audited
31-03-2022 (Z)
Financial Year
31-03-2021 (Z)

5,00,000
(2,97,934)
(2,97,934)
2,02,066
3,800

1,00,000
(2,94,134)
(2,94,134)
(1,94,134)
13,400

3,800
(3,800)
(3,800)

13,400
(13,400)
(13,400)

1,00,000
(2,80,734)
(2,80,734)
(1,80,734)
13,400
-

1,00,000
2,67,334)
2,67,334)
(1,67,334)
13,400

13,400
(13,400)
(13,400)
-

13,400
13,400)
(13,400)

For Specml. ty Hotels 1ndiaPriyate Limited
V
ltrjee
Director e
DIN: 00200577

In Rs.
2 years prior to
the last Audited
Financial Year
31-03-2020 (Z)
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Chartered Accountants
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Tel.
: 022- 6191 9293 / 222 /200
Fax
: 022- 2684 2221 / 6191 9256
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of
Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Speciality Hotels India Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at September 30, 2022, the
loss for the period ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the CAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. We are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position and financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

GAM & Co
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•

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)0) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For GM1 & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N Mber: 103429W
i
4A-i
\
rd f

c

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership Number: 039070
UDIN: 9-5-0a9070 GAS XW'T511941
Place: Mumbai
Date: pap bert 0 2o2 2_

Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022
Particulars

Notes

As at 30 September, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets
a. Property, plant and equipment
b. Right of use asset .
c. Capital work-in-progress
d. Other intangible assets
e. Financial assets
1.
Other non-current assets

-

Total non-current assets
Current assets
a. Inventories
b. Financial assets
c. Other current assets
Total current assets

2,02,066

Total Assets

2,02,066

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a: Equity share capital
b. Other equity

5
6

-

5,00,000
(2,97,934)
2,02,066

Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
b. Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
b. Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities .

-

Total liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For OW & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration N7,03429W
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Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No.039070
UDIN:
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Place: Mumbai
Date:
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Speciality Hotels Ind'a Private Limit
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Awl Chatterjee
Director
DIN :00200443

II C
Director
DIN :00200577

Place : Mumbai
Date: ao .1 0
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Place : Mumbai

Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period 01 Apr11,2022 to 30 Sept, 2022
Amount In Rs.
Particulars

For the period ended

Notes

30 September, 2022

Income
I

Revenue from operations

II

Other income

III

Total Income (I + II)

IV

Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed
Employee benefits expense,
Finance costs

_

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

7

3,800

Total Expenses

3,800

V

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional item and tax (III - IV)

VI

Exceptional loss/(gain) (Refer note 40)

VII

Profit / (Loss) before tax (V - VI)

VIII

Tax expense

(3,800)
_
(3,800)

(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
(3) Short/(excess) provision for tax relating to prior year:
-

Total tax expense

(3,800)

Profit! (Loss) for the year (VII - VIII)

IX

Other comprehensive income (OCI) (Net of tax)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or los!
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan
X

Total other comprehensive Income

XI

Total comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the period (IX +X)

(3,800)

Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of share of Rs. 10 (Previous

8

year Rs. 10)]
(1) Basic (in Rs.)

(3.72)
(3.72)

(2) Diluted (in Rs.)

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statement
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As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Speciality Hotels India Private Li\ted

For GM) &Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registratiop10 103429W
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Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the period 01 April, 2022 to 30 Sept, 2022
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Amount in Rs
Particulars

As at 30 Sept, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the reporting Period

1,00,000

Changes In Equity Share capital to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period

1,00,000

Changes in Equity Share capital during the period

4,00,000

Balance at the end of the reporting period

5,00,000

B. OTHER EQUITY
Amount in Rs.
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars

Notes

As at March 31, 2022

Retained Earnings

14

Loss for the period

Total

(2,94,134)

(2,94,134)

(3,800)

(3,800)

Transferred to retained earning due to ESOP lapsed
Other comprehensive loss arising from remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation
Total comprehensive loss for the period
As at September 30, 2022

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements (2-43)

(3,800)

(3,800)

(2,97,934)

(2,97,934)
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As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For GNU & Co

Speciality Hotels India Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No 03429W
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Partner
Membership No.039070
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Director

Director
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Date:
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
a) Basis of Preparation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act.
The Accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.
(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period
and defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given at the date of
the transaction, in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iii) Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company's
normal operating cycle for each of its businesses, as per the criteria set out in the Schedule III to
the Act.
(iv) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest millions as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

b) Property, plant and equipment
All items of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The carrying values of Property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The cost of an item of Property, plant and

equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The cost includes the purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use, cost of replacing
part of the Property, plant and equipment.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore it is not depreciated.
Leasehold land is amortised over the duration of the lease.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lower of the lease period and the

management's estimate of the useful life of the Asset. Depreciable amount for assets is the
cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.

Depreciation has been provided as per Written Down Value (WDV) Method for all classes of
assets except leasehold improvements wherein Straight-Line Method (5LM) has been
followed. The estimated useful life which is in line with Schedule II to the Act is set out
herein below.
;
:lAss'elci.ari

Computers
Plant and Equipment

Vehicles

, Useftitlffei.fa7-iriir
3 - 6 years
5-15 years
8 - 10 years

The Company has assessed the estimated useful life of furniture and fixtures as 10 years
based on past experience and technical evaluation.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis, if appropriate.
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
c)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition, less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses. An intangible asset is recognised, where it is probable that the future
economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and where its cost can
be reliably measured. The amortizable amount of intangible assets is allocated over the best
estimate of its useful life on a straight-line basis.
The Company capitalizes software costs where it is reasonably estimated that the software
has an enduring Useful life. Software is amortised over the management's estimate of its
useful life of five years.
Patents and Trademarks are amortised uniformly over a period of five years.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

d) Capital work-in-progress:
Projects under which property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use
are carried at cost.
e)

Impairment of assets:
An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with Ind AS 36 on Impairment of Assets
when at the balance sheet date there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount
of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the asset's net selling price and value in
use). The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is
recognised as an impairment loss in Statement of Profit & Loss.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement
of Profit or Loss.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f)

Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognised when the Company transfers control of the promised services to the
customer. The Company measures revenue, for the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised services.

g) Other income:
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to
receive it is established.
h) Inventories:
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of inventory is determined by the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Cost of inventories
comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
i)

Employee Benefits:
Compensation to employees for services rendered is measured and accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 19 on Employee Benefits.
Defined Contribution Plans:
Employee Benefits such as salaries, allowances, non-monetary benefits and employee
benefits under defined contribution plans such as provident and other funds, which fall due
for payment within a period of twelve months after rendering service, are charged as
expense to Statement of Profit & Loss in the period in which the service is rendered.
Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Benefits under defined benefit plans such as gratuity which fall due for payment
after completion of employment are measured by the projected unit credit method, on the
basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each balance sheet date.
The Company's obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of
obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.
Actuarial Gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive inCome. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to Statement of Profit or
Loss. Past service cost is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as
follows:

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);
• Net interest expense or income; and
• Remeasurement
The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the line item 'Employee benefits expense'.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual

deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans.
Foreign currency transactions;
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. The treatment of foreign
currency transactions are as under:
Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or using rates that closely
approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

Measurement at the balance sheet date
Foreign, currency monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date.

Non monetary items measured at historical cost/fair value, are translated using the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/fair value measurement respectively.

Treatment of exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on transactions / translation of foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities of the Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

k) Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which
they are incurred..

I) Taxation:
Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with income tax laws) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effect
of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year).

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
'profit before tax as reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates that have been

enacted or subsequently enacted by the end of the reporting period and the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other tax laws, as applicable.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
the assets can be realized in future; however when there is unabsorbed depreciation or
carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is
virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each
balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is

reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and Deferred Tax for the year
Current and deterred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively.
m) Earnings Per Share:
The Company reports basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) in accordance with Ind AS
33 on Earnings per Share. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year. DilMed EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n)

Leases:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Company as Lessee:

Right-of-Use (ROU) assets are recognised at inception of a contract or arrangement for
significant lease components at cost less lease incentives, if any. ROU assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost
incurred and lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date. ROU assets
are generally depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of
the underlying assets on a straight line basis. The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine
whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as
described in the 'Property, Plant and Equipment' policy.
Lease term is determined based on consideration of facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option.
Lease payments associated with short-term leases and low value leases are recognised as
expense in the periods in which they are incurred. The Company recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made on the date of recognition of
the lease. Such lease liabilities do not include variable lease payments (that do not depend

on an index or a rate), which are recognised as expense in the periods in which they are
incurred. Interest on lease liability is recognised using the effective interest method. Lease
liabilities are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. The carrying amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured upon
modification of lease arrangement or upon change in the assessment of the lease term. The
effect of such remeasurernent is adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.
Company as a Lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor
under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment or

investment property and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments received under
operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.
o)

Cash Flow Statement:
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Ind AS 7 on Cash
Flow Statements •and presents the cash flows from operating, investing and financing

activities of the Company.
Cash and Cash equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on hand

and unencumbered bank balances.
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13 ) Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash

flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other
claims against the company. There are certain obligations which management have

concluded based on all available facts and circumstances that are not probable of payment
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes (unless
the probability of payment is remote) but are not provided for in the financial statements.
A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

q)

Employee share based payments:

Equity settled share based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date of Equity
settled share based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises
its estimate of the equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the

original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Equity settled

employee benefits reserve.
r)

Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit or Loss.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets
Classification of financial assets:
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition):
• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Effective interest method:
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocatine, interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
Interest income is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss and is included in the 'Other
income" line item.
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition, financial assets
that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL
are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on rerneasurement recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. The
net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item.
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of
the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment in Joint venture and subsidiaries:

Investment in joint venture and subsidiaries is carried at cost in the financial statements.
Impairment of financial assets:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on
financial assets measured at anior tised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights
to receive cash or other financial asset.
For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial
Viabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at FVTP L.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Derecognition of financial instruments:

The Company derecog,nizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liabihty derecognised and the consideration paid/payable is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
In application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
2.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
2.1.1

Useful lives ef property, plant and equipment:
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. During period ended 30
September 2022, there were no changes in useful lives of property plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

3.1.2

Impairment of property, plant and equipment:
The Company at the end of each reporting period, based on external and internal
sources of information, assesses indicators and mitigating factors of whether a
restaurant (cash generating unit) may have suffered an impairment loss. If it is
determined that an impairment loss has been suffered, it is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.1.3

Impairment of trade receivables:
The Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by
analyzing historical payment patterns, customer status, customer creditworthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer
deteriorates, additional allowances may be required.

3.1.4

Defined benefit plans:
The cost and present obligation of Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan are determined
using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to comoitixities iiivoived in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
benefit obliaotion
assumptions are made at each reporting date.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
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3.1.5

Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
Balance Shoot cannot he measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these
valuations are taken from observable soucces where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of various inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk,
volatility, etc. Changes in assumptions/judgements about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.

3.1.6

Deferred tax asset:
The Company reviews the carrying value of deferred tax asset (DTA) at the end of
each reporting period. The company has not recognised deferred tax assets arising
from the carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits since the Company
does not have suffic.ent taxable temporary differences as well as convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax losses or unused tux credits can be utilised by the Company.

3.17

Contingencies:
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations
and other claims aipainst the company. There are certain obligations which
management nave concluded based on all available facts and circumstances that
are not pronable el payment and such obligations are treated as contingent
liabilities and disclosed in the notes (unless the probability of payment is remote)
but are not provider! :or in the financial statements.

Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Stadelone Financial Statements
Note 4
Cash and Cash Equivalents and other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
A
Particulars

a)
i)

Balances with Banks
In current accounts

b)

Cash on hand

As at 30 September,
2022

2,00,466
1,600

Cash and cash equivalents

2,02,066

Note 5
Share capital
Particulars

Amount in Rs.
As at 30 Sept, 2022

Authorised Share Capital
5.1

5.2

5.3

Equity share capital
5,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 100 each

5,00,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
5,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 100 each

5,00,000

Total

5,00,000

Shareholding of promoter

Promoter name
Speciality Restaurants Limited

As at 30 Sept, 2022
% of total shares
No. of shares
100.00%
5,000

t the beginningand at the end of the ea'
As at 30 Sept, 2022
Particulars
Number of Shares
At the beginning of the period
At the end of the period
5.5

1,000
5,000

Amount
1,00,000
5,00,000

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Stadelone Financial Statements
5.6 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company are set out below

As at 30 Sept, 2022
Particulars
Fully paid equity shares
Speciality Restaurants Limited

Number of shares
held
5,000

Note 6
Other equity

Amount in Rs.
Particulars
a)

(2,97,934)
(2,97,934)

Retained earnings
Total

6.1

As at 30 Sept, 2022

Retained earnings
Particulars

Amount in Rs.
As at 30 Sept, 2022

Balance at the beginning of year
Profit/(Loss) as per Statement of profit and loss

(2,94,134)
(3,800.00)

Balance at end of the year

(2,97,934)

% holding of equity
shares
100.00%

Speciality Restaurants Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Note 7
Other expenses
Amount in
Particulars

For the period ended
30 September, 2022

Miscellaneous expenses

3,800

Total

3,800

Note 8
Earnings per share (EPS) - Is calculated as per Ind AS 33
Amount in Rs.
Particuairs

For the period ended
30 September, 2022

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax for Equity Shareholders

(3,800)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Nos.)

1,022

Basic Earnings Per Share (in Rs.)

-3.72

Diluted Earnings Per Share (in Rs.)

-3.72
10

Nominal value per share (in Rs.)

Note: The Company do not have any potential dilutive equity shares.

As per our report of even date attached
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of
Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Speciality Hotels India Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, end other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss
for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(1 0) of the Act (SAs), Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAO together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements Under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the CAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,
Emphasis of matter
We , draw attention to Note 11 regarding the appropriateness of the "going concern" basis used for the
preparation of these Accounts even though the net-worth of the company has been completely eroded as at
31st March, 2022 and the validity of the "going concern" basis would which is dependent on expected increase in
business and continued financial support from its shareholders or Promoters, as further explained in the note.
The accounts do not include adjustments, if any, that may result from discontinuances of the funding by the
Shareholders or Promoters.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report. Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information We are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position and financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing .and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to. the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level Of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis Of these standalone
financial statements.

•
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of materiel misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
-internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of. a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For SPECIALITY HOTELS 4' !APRIVATE LI TIO

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1 The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act is not applicable to the company.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
c. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss de
the relevant books of account.

by this Report are in agreement with

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) -Rules, 2014.
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f. The internal financial control reporting clause is not applicable to the company as the company meets
the criteria for exemption given by the Serial No.5 of Notification No. GSR 583(E) dated 13th June, 2017.
g. With respect tc the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us„ the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 with 'respect to managerial
remuneration is not applicable to Private limited Companies.
h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the hest of our
.information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the company.
U. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including• derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2022.
iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the company,
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iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or Indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including Foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause 0) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.
v. The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
For Gohil Tejas & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 135813W
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
BALANCE SHEET AS AT March 31, 2022
INR
•
Ectunv AND LIAIRLITIES
Shareholder's Funds
(a)Share Capital
(b)Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

march 31. 2022 ,.

.•
2
•

tiabiRdas
Nint-Cievent Liabilities
lal torrykterm borrowings
(h) Deferred tax tiabiRties (Net)
(c)Other 1.048-leiTh 118b1311os
(d)cons-term provisions

- -Atiardi31 2021 •-•.•
.

Laoctoci,
12.9414941

1,000.00
(2,807.34)
I1,807.34l

L (2•311-U

3

1.21641

1,184.42
.
•
.

. .... 1,276.42
Current Liabilities
(a) 5$-on-tern, borrowings
IN Trade Payables
(A)total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(B)total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities
(diShort•term provisions

1.184A2
.
-

4

.
H . 664:94.:.

TOTAL

622.92
622.92
-

.

ASSETS
Nan•Current Assets

.
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets)
.
ON Long-term loans and advances
(c)Other non-cui rent assets

-

Current assets
(a)Current Investments
(a) Inventories
ICI Trade Receivables
(d)Cash and BankBalances
(el Other current Assets

'
_
-

TOTAL
Significant Accotint..:g Policies and Notes form an inbagral part of
the financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Gohil Tejas & Ca.
.11,1AS
Firm Regiation Hunter: 1393131/1
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022
,
,

L

No qs

.... .
PiftlafferS
H
REVENUE
Revenue from operationi
Other income
Total Income

(I)

EXPENSES
Other expenses
Total Expenses

(I1)

_

vi

...

'

.

--

5

Tax exPeasm
Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating weather periods
Deferred tax

134.00
134.00

(111)

.

(V)

-,.

-

e

attributable to equity

.
-

..
-..

,.
profit/(loss) for the year ended
Earnings per share for profit
shareholders
Basic EPS
Diluted (PS

1134.00)

134,

- '(14.44

P34.00)

.r (13..41
i)
(13.40)

(1140)
(13.40)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes form an integral
part of the Financial Statements
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Chartered Accountants
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022

a
a

Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared to comply in all material aspects under the Historical Cost convention and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India and the mandatory Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ('Act') read with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).
The Balance sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of cashflows and other statements and notes thereto,
have been prepared as per the requirements of Division I of Schedule Ill to the Act.

b

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and repotted amounts of income and expenses during the
period.
Accountirg estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements In the period in which
changes are made and, If material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

c Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost Is computed on a weighted average basis.
The net I ealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
Finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
o

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents includes Cash on hand and bank balances including short-Wm Investments in Fixed
Deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with Investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

f

Earnings per share
Basic ea' nines per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities Of other contracts to issue
equity shares were exercised or converted during.the year.
Diluted earnings per share Is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders
for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity
shares,
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022
g

Accounting for Taxes
Tax Expense:
Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax
rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes In respect of previous years. Interest expenses and
penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. interest
Income. if any, related to Income tax is included in current tax expense.
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities tor financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed
to be car 'led forward. In the year In which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax
Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit
Entitlement." The Company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down
the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period.

h

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognized when the company has a legal and constructive present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimates can be made of the amount of
obligation. Disclosure for contingent liabilities are made when there is a possible obligation or present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. No provision is recognized or disclosure for
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of
outflow af resources is remote. Contingent Asset are not recognised in the financial statements since this may
result the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income Is
virtually certain, tflenjJselad asset is not a contingent asset and Is recognised.
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31. 2022
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Equity shares MINA 100 each with voting rights
At Apri11, 2070
inCreaseRdeoease) during the year
At htert1111, 2021
IncreaseMecrease1 during the year
At March 31 2022
•

5000

5.000.00

•

•

5,000

5030.00

-

•

.5,000

5,000.00

-

-

IL Issued . Subscribed end %die 0100P
(Amount In lellt

-,:ete;,t-: ;.., '

.
At Apra 1,2020
Issued during tie swried
At March 31, 2021
Issued dur mg the period
At March 31, 2022

1,000

1.000.00
.

4000

1,00000

1.000

1,000.00

N

° -

_
•

-

W. Details of sionthelders balding nadir Mt shares In the tarepany
alprritai thashareholdar

.4:0110mlittssai :

... Atilt Illarth 190211
_ .•

•••

Equity shares with vOitAg rights
Equity shares of Is,R LOD each tally paid
Anial‘ Chattenee '
Suchhanda Chatterlee
Indrang Chattcrwe

1,030

100.00%

--it.
1,000

600
300
100

60.00%
30.00%
10.00%

600
300
100

ita

•

500.00%

60.00%
30.00%
10.0014

•

ligiangatearing the
, ,.. .

-i-

Slain ha/ Ours** asititittesislit . . Sea AU
Equity shares of INR 100 each fully 0010

Anjan Chatterjee
Suchhanda Chatterjee
Indranil Chatterjee

600
300
100
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31. 2022

i. Reserves and
Particulars

us

u I IN
.

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

a

,

-t44/1.1irelt3.1,-$42Y‘:
(2,941.34)

(2,807.34)

(2,941.34)

(2,807.34)

Amount in INR Hundred
March 31, 2022
'March 30 •::'
(2,673.34)
(2,807,34)
(134.00)
(134.00)

/ Deficit In Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance
Net Profit/Ross) for the period

2,807.34

(2,941.34),

Closing balance

13. BORROWINGS

(Amount In INR Hundred)
M arsh 311-202,1!' :- ,:Kifilifi3/44021,/

Particulars .
Long term borrowing
Unsecured
lerm Loan
(I) From Banks
00 From Other Pen •41

1,276.42
1,276.42

1.184.42
1.184.42

1,276.42

1,184.42

-

Total

Short tern bormwhei
Unsecured

-

(i) Rom Banks
(ii) From Other Parties
Total

-

-

.

-

...,
/1/.a.,
•-1on.
c." ‘
*)
I
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31. 2022

Amount in INR Hundred
litaitlf
Other Current liabilities
Other payables

664.92
664.92

622.92
622.92

Amount in INR Hundred)
•..

Ontlaars

.

'

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note a below)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

20214tP:

:

30.00
104.00

30.00
104.00

134.00

134.00

Amount in INR Hundred)
I.
r

z

202142

tato-23. 2

As auditor
Audit Fee

•

•

30.00

30.00
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SPECIAUTY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022
(6. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Amount in INR Hundred)
Mardi 31, 2021
Marsh 3 2021

Perth:elan
(a) Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company

(13.40)

(13.40)

113A0)

43.40)

(13.40)

(13.40)

43.40)

(13.40)

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
Used in calculating basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity Molders of We company used in calculating Diluted earnings

(134.00)

(134.00)

per share

(134.00)

(134.00)

1,000

1.000

1,000

1,000

(b) Diluted. earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
Total Diluted earnings per shine attributable to the equity holders of the company

(c) Weighted average number of shales used as the denominator
Weighted average number ol equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation Of Diluted earnings per share:
Options
•
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Preferency %hares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating Diluted
earnings per share
weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the
The weighted average number of shares takes into account the
year. There have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of
authorisation of these hnencial(ts.
stat

(..e7\cu4,(61/..‘
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022
(Arnotmt In (NR Hundred)

Okatikric PARTY twisacnoms
As per Actoundrig StandaR118. the discloares of transactions with the elated pares are given below:
Litt of related peados where wend aim and ndated parties vAth whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
Panted Related Pee* •
Sullen Cheiter}ee
Speciality Restaurants Ltd.

tealurectRebdionship
Key management person
Companies in which key Management person has bigniftent conbol

Rue:Reim& parlays hove been identified by the Monogemen ond relied upon by the Auditor.
Ilitniktif the Piety
Nature of7ransaahtest

Anjan 00ftetiee

402142

201ini

92.03

Key camel/emelt person Loan Received

92.00

poi tniessemoins senantes in wt. not ewer
keen eltrettsectidos
Sonowines

Note: Pined> yenr &WOW

.

lia"CIP
MWW

/
•

SS
•
•
.

Jitilefit '
Sada
•
.

,

insHr
•

143942
t2,247.42)

1,339.41
(1.247.42)

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(s.ANAtrricAL RATIO
Amount in INR'00
Sr-No
• 1
2
3
1
A

4
5
6.
74,
8
9
10
11

Particulars
Current ratio
Debi- Equity Ratio
Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Return on Equity Ratio
Inventory Turnover Ratio
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
Net Capital Turnover Ratio
Net Profit Ratio
Return on Capital Employed
Return on Investment

March 31, 440,WittlaitlairsOilkilk;-.;i1-4teitt
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31.2022
I 9, OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES-,
IThe Company does not have any kind of Immovable Property whose Tide Deeds are not held In the name of the company,
therefore disclosure related to those are not applicable to the company.
8 The Company does not have any fixed assets which are revalued, therefore the disclosure regarding the reconciliation of
the gross and net carrying amount of each Class of assets at the beginning and end of the reporting period is not applicable to
The company does not hold any project in progress or any suspended project as on the reporting date, thus the Capital
work in progress ageing schedule is not applicable to us.
iv. The company does not have any Intangible asset under development stage, therefore disclosures and ageing related to
those are not applicable to us.
v. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
COmpany for holding any Benami property under. the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988(45 of 1998) and the rules
made thereunder.
vi. The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions against any current assets and that are
used for any other purpose other than the specific purpose for which it was taken at the reporting balance sheet date.
vii. The Company has not identified any transactions or balances In any reporting periods with companies whose name is
struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
viii. The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the any
reporting period.
ix. There is no charge or sal ;slactIon yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period by the company.
x. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
xi. There are no schemes oi arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority In terms of sections 230 to
237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the reporting periods.
xii. The Company have not advanced Or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign
xiii. The Company nave not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lents or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
siv. The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as Income dunng tne year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as. search or survey or any
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
xv. The company does not tall under the provision of section 135 of the Companies ACt. 2013, hence the CSR death:Sure is not
applicable to the company.
yin. The Comoany has not traded or invested in Crypt° currency or Virtual Currency during reporting period.
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SPECIAUTY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022

20, DETAILS OF DUES TO McRD AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFIMIEFLDWIAIIP10,..SMALCANDSMORN
.
; ,

SECis
.

DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006(1115MEDACt MOW

:Particulars
-.:qcktfc:raal???..ir;;;A:Mlaititglaffinfigegitirra.
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Ad, 2006°.
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount .
•
•
Payment made to suppliers ( other than interett ) beyond the appointed day,
during the year
Interest paid to suppliers under
MSMED Art, I oilier than
Section 16)
!nieces: due and uayuble to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already
made

-

-

-

-

.

11.072IER NOTES
In the opinion of the Roard, all current assets, loans and advance are not less than of the value stated, If realized in the ordinary
course of business. PrOVISI011 for all known liabilities have been Sequent/ ganilded for and are neither in excess nor short of the
amount resonsblyrieresset&
The accumulated losses of the Company at the year-end have eroded its Share Capital and Reserves. the Company also continues to
receive financial support from Its shareholders/directors.
Accordingly, the accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern be*, which Is dependent on the expected increase
in business and continued financial support from Its shareliolderS/Dhectors.
:Air!td.necirsiary LoCantro to Arent
U;asviousyser apses have beim resrpgKelt,Orrartged, wheelies deipsi
dips/kaftan '

As per mw report of even date attached
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Nos Gohll
Proprietor
MembershipNo.153570

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN :M13

um"'" 221 53510 Avt4 A OH C1.21
Pine :Mumbil
One: 1st geptesnber, AORQ.

Pin ; Murata'
Ds": I St Cepternier

20 D- •

x SPECIALITY HOTELS 1140!

',TE LiMir

R CTOR

Gohil Tejas & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Address:-B-204, Shri Lavmi Apartment, Near Ambaji Mandir, Carter Road No;-3, Borivali (East), Mumbal -400066
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of
Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Speciality Hotels India Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss
for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements
Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 9 regarding the appropriateness of the "going concern" basis used for the
preparation of these Accounts even though the net-worth of the company has been completely eroded as at
31st March, 2021 and the validity of the "going concern" basis would which is dependent on expected increase in
businesi and continued financial support from its shareholders or Promoters, as further explained in the note.
The accounts do not include adjustments, If any, that may result from &continuances of the funding by the
Shareholders or Promoters..
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
Information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analyse, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholders Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, In doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. We are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position and financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and far view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

•

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a .
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can prise from fraud Of error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment. and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit We also:
• • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from- error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
•

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures Made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements Or, if such discloeures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality .and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and In evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit We report that:
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a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
•
c. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us_ the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 2013 with respect to managerial
remuneration is not applicable to Private limited Companies.
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014: as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the company.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2021.
iii. There were no amOunts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the company.

For Gohit Tejas & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 135813W

Tejas Gohil
Proprietor
Membership Number: 153570
UDIN:- 21153570AAAAC15078
Mumbai
le November, 2021.

For SPECIALITY HOTELS

,„TE LIMITED

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
BALANCE SHUT AS AT MARCH 31, 2021
(Amount in INR)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Long-term Liabilities
(d) Long-term provisions
Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises anc small
enterprises
(8) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets)
(b) Long-term loans and advances
(c) Other non-current assets

Currant assets
(a) Current Investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade Receivables
(d) Cash and Bank Balances
(e) Other current Assets
TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes form an Integra i part of

1 to 10

the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

L--111/

FR,No.:
135813w
MIA113A1
1/4

For SPECIALITY HOTEL
Place : Mumbai
Date : 8th November, 2021

iFor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

*

,
'rajas &gill
Proprietor
Membership No. 153570
UDIN:- 21153570AAAACIS078
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For Gohil Tejas & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 115813W
Clattered Accountants

Anjan Chatterjee
Director
DIN : 00200443

hatterj
Director
DIN : 00200577

IAPRI
g•

Dift CTOR

Place : Mumbai
Date :8th November, 21321

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
i.

Parta.Oars

,

Notes

,

2020-21
-

.i...
,._

.

REVENUE
Revenue from operations
Other income

.

Total Revenue

-

(I)

EXPENSES
Other expenses

5

Total Expenses

13,400

(II)

43,40Q
13400

13,400

(iii)

13,400)

(13,400)

(V)

Tax expense:
Current tax

.

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods

.

Deferred tax

-

Profit/(toss) for the year ended
Earnings per
shareholders

share

for

profit

attributable

to

eq.iity

(13AN)

:1±3.40)
(13,40)

(13.40)

6

Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes form an Integral

(13,400)

(13.40)

1 to /0

part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Gohil Tejas & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 135813W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
\

ijidranil chatted

Tejas Gohlt
Proprietor

Anjan Chatterjee
Director

Director

Membership No. 153570

DIN :00200443

DIN: 00200577

UDIN:- 21153570AAAACIS078
Place : Mumbai
Date : 8th November, 2021

Place : hlumbai
Date : 8th November, 2021

For SPECIALITY HOTELS IN

,RIVATE WA

DIRECTO

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
1 Slenificant Accounting Policies:
a Basis of Preparation of financial statements
.
The financial statements are prepared t:i comply in all material aspects under the Historical Cost
convention and in accordance with gene:ally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India and the
mandatory Accounting Standards prescribsci under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ('Act') read
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accou tts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).
The Balance sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of cashflows and other statements and notes
thereto, have been prepared as per the reqairements of Division I of Schedule III to the Act.
b

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect ff reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating td contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
income and expenses during the period.
Accounting estimates could change trot— period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements

in the period in which changes are made ',rid, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of mit and net realisable value. Cost Is computed on a weighted

average basis. The net realisable value is thn estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and esti -need costs necessary to make the sale.
Finished goods and work-in-progress Include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs
incurred In bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents includes Cash on hand and bank balances including short-term investments in
Fixed Deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any de±errals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expense; associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financhg activities of the Company are segregated.
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted avera ?e. number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed l'y dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been Issued upon
conversion of all potential equity shares.
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SPEOALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEeiR ENDED MARCH 31.2021k
g

Accounting for Taxes
Tax Expense:
Current tax is the expected tax payableireceivabkr the taxable income/loss for the year using applicable tax rates
at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. interest expenses and
penalties, if any, related to income tax are in.: uded in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest
Income, if any, related to Income tax is included i- current tax expense.
Deferred taw
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
A deferred tax liability Is recognised based on lie expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, o• substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabis that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities ar: offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to eettle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only tc the extent that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal'income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to
be carried forward. In the year in which the Co(npany recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Availabl in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act,
1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit
Entitlement." The Company reviews the "MAT cn dit entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the
asset to the extent the Company does not have .ionvincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified
period.

h

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognized when the company het. a legal and constructive present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimates can be made of the amount of
obligation. Disclosure for contingent liabilities ac-s made when there is a possible obligation or present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an ouiflow of resources. No provision is recognized or disclosure for
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow
of resources is remote. Contingent Asset are not .recognised m the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realiseci However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is I ecognised.
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANOALSTATEMENTS FOR THE 'EAR EtIDED MARCH 31. 2021
hi

dalludioll

• shares of IN0 100 each strithle00117107171
Matti 1,2019
Inerease/(decresse) aging the year
At Math 31, 2020
InotasaRdnereasa) during the year
At RANO I& WS

5,00,000
5,00,000

1,00,000

U. tionnl,flutatedbad and fully paid up

in Poll 1, 2013
Issued during the period
At Match 31, 2020
wired dunng the period
At littensh 31, 2071
vi. Details of shareholders no kilns mere than Melton lit theeappm,

Equity shares with voting rights

14100

MOOS

1,000

.100.00

606
100
100

60.0011
30.0011
10.0016

600
300
100

GOOD%
30.00%
10.00%

%alb/ shares of INA 100 each flay paid
Anjan Chatterjee

Suchhanda Cteitteriee
lodrang thatiertee
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOP THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
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(2,67,334)

Surplus / (Defldt)N Statement of Profit and Loss

(2.67,334).

Surplus / (Crellcitl In Statement of ilmfit end Loss
'
'anti-22,42,
Opening balance
Net Prokillossi kw the period
Closing balance

(2/80.734

.'75"-'7`TT.S.ar.... •
Long term borrowing
Unsecured
Term Loan
(I) From Banks
From Other parties
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FCR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
•..

4..0ThIJERLIABItind
Particulars

13

Amount in INR
March al., 2020 1

Match 31, 2021'

Long Term Liabilities
Trade Payables
Others

-

_

Total
Other Current liabilities
Other payables

58,092 1
58,092

62,292
62,292

15:0thirtiottises
(Amount in iNR)
2020-2i: ' :r...S-. ; te..a:12.91,940,.. ' 4

Pateilillno .
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note a below)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total
___

I
:,

3,000
10,400

13 400

131400

_

•Clt,.
. j1

3,000
10,400

;*4;kft5 0.1: '

;

14

-:'''

As auditor
Audit Fee

Amount In INR)
.'-'
.
'
3,000
3,000

3,009
3,000
EJAS
—
(!RN
135813$
v . % midfue3A1 _
1/4
gb

/

.cct)
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2021
drEARNINOS PER SHARE
DaffitatOita
(a) Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holdeis of the company

(13.40)

(13.40)

From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity hokiers of the company
Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity hollers of the company
(b) Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company

P!.)

1114

(13.40)

(13.40)

(13.40)

(13.40)

(13,400)

(23.400)

From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
Total Diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company
Add: Interest savings on convertible preference shares
Add: Interest savings on other Instruments
Profit from discontinuing operations
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used In calculating Diluted
earnings per share
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted earnings per share:

1,000

1,000

Options
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Preference shares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating

1,000

1,000

Diluted earnings per share
of changes in treasury share transactions during
The weighted average number of shares takes into account me weighted average effect
the year. There have been no other transactions involving Eqt.ity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date
of authorisation of these financial statements.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDI.1) MARCH 31.2021
_

InasSinimasAcooss,

As per Accounting Standard 18. the disclosures of traMactkms with the related par es ate given below
(I) hit of related parka where control exists and ratted pantos with whom trao‘actlons have taken place and relegoodeps:

1641440M0Posi7
Anjan (batteries
Spstasky Restaurants Ltd

Nate lesketed

,4
Cumpaoles in whkh

baretteen ide

the

KeymanmemegmrsA
y menagernent parson has signOlcant mist*

meat and relied

Key nonageatest person LOOP Recant

Arian Chattel!.

Mauler.

9200
,

5.205

011 Outstanding balances at the end of yew

54torsOlirmstions

1.1

.
1.14.742
11.15.5471

Borrosewss
NNE *WSW yew figures am represented in bracket
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

-EIP.DUES TO MICRDANDAMAtaartr$60garg..s.:
=
'fET ACT...2046 (PASEO ACT, $06)

-;

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 20116 •
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under FASMED Act, or the above amount

..,

Payment made to suppliers ( other than interest ) beyord the appointed day,
• ring the year
Interest paid to suppliers under
MSMED Act, ( other than
Section 16)

-

,.

-

•
interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment air -r •

i•

-

.

-

-

made

lifaNOWIWISEliaceoleakcg.
In the opinion of the Board, all current assets, loans ar ti advance are not less than of the value stated, If raked In the ordinary
course of business. Provision for all known liabilities have seen adequatly provided for and are neither in excess nor short of the
amount resonably necessary.
The accumulated losses of the Company at the year-end base eroded Its !hare Capital and Reserves. The Company also continues to
receive financial support from Its shareholders/directors.
Accordingly, the accounts of the Company have been enured on a going concern basis, which is dependent on the expected
Increase in bi:siness and continued financial support from it shareholders/Directors.
ous year figures have pier( regioupecy rearrange... odliorgYificeni**Ailtisiaribtla.51k41110ffikti,019'
•

As per our report of even date attached
For Gohil Teias & Co.
Firm Registration Number: lnallW
Chattered Accountants

Son bre alf of the Board of Directors

Tejas Gohll
Proprietor
Membership No. 153570
21153570AAAACIStY78

-Anion Chatterjee

Place Mumbai
Date :8th November, 2021

Place : Mumhal
Late :8th November, 2021

Director
DIN: 00200443

Witina alatZSie.
DIrtgtO,
:0020)577

For SPECIALITY HOTEL?. 'IN:
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IRECTO

Gohil Tejas & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Address:-B-204, Shfl Laxmi Apartment, Near Ambajl Mandir, Carter Road No:-3, Borivali (East), Mumbal -400066
Mobile No:-9022.571283, Email Id:- catejasgolvICagmaIl.com

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of
Speciality Hotels India Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Speciality Hotels India Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss
for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAO together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled bur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 9 regarding the appropriateness of the "going concern" basis used for the
preparation of these Accounts even through the net-worth of the company has been completely eroded as at
31at March, 2020 and the validity of the "going concern" basis would which Is dependent on expected Increase in

business and continued financial support from its shareholders or Promoters, as further explained in the note.
The accounts do not include adjustments, if any, that may result from discontinuances of the funding by the
Shareholders or Promoters.

For SPECIALITY HOTELS I

•
'RIVATELlr TED

DIRECTO

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is 'responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis. Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
It based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. We are required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Bawd of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position and financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013—read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completenest of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs wiN always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if . individually or in tho aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.
for SPECIALITY HOTELS
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
Skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
•

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eatimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continuns a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably .knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit we report that:

FIWSPECIALITY HOTELS IN
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a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b. In our opinion, propel books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
c. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion. the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Ad.

•

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, . the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to managerial
remuneration is not applicable to Private limited Companies.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the company.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2020.
iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the company.

For Goh11 Tejas & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 135813W
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Proprietor
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7" December, 2020.

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
,_

• cu—,,, •

Periallirs.:-

I.T-filts:

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

MARC:1431 2020 .

.- ,

.

totegoal

1
2

100,000
(253,934)
(153 934)

33-4)
- (-26,

'

(!b1
:814)
,.
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Long-term Liabilities
(0) Long-term provisions

3

—

. MARCH 31;2019

1093242

98,842

. 109,24?

98,842

_

Current Liabilides
(a) Shot t-term bor r °wings
(b) Trade Payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(0) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Other carrent liabilities
.
(d) Short-term provisions

,
x
,2

.
-..

-

.t
,,

-

,I,

0

•

,-:
i

4

55,092
55,092

50.09-?
TOTAL

-

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
lal Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets)
(g) tong-term loansend advances
(h)Other non-current assets

.

•

.

-

...

Current assets
(a) Current Investments
(ID) Inventories
(c) Trade Receivacles
(d) Cash and Bank Balances
(0 Other current Assets

--

.
.

_

TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes form an integral part of
the Wendel Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Gohil reins & Co.
Firm Registration Nuniter: 135813W .
.
Chartered Accountants
'•
r
'
Tea Ciohli
Proprietor
Membership Na. 153570
20153570AAAABP7685
•

Place : Mumbai
Date : 07-12-2020
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Anjan Otatterjee
Director
DIN: 00200443

Place: Mumbei
Date: 07-12-2020

IndrantI Chattergee
Director
DIN : 00200577
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Partici/fors

(Amount in INR

„.
20

•

,-2011t:
, .

REVENUE

.

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Revenue

"
)41-:

lil

EXPENSES
Other expenses
Total Expenses.

(II)

Profit/(loss) before tax (I-II)

(RI) .

Tax expense:
Cwrent tax
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred tax

(V)

:L.

F

.
IT .

"--

5

;_

-

-•• r.

-

"F

-•:::::?,
)

13,400
•13,400

.1.11,400t

113A00)

.''',

.

..-a

-

-

..
•

Profit/(loss) for the year ended
Earnings per share for

profit

attributable to equity

•(L3A00)

113.4001

(13.40)
(13.40)

(13•40)
(13.40)

6

shareholders
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS
•
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes form an Integral
part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Gohil TeJas & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 1351113W
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
• '`‘,`,

Tejas Gohil
Proprietor
Membership No. 153570
ULAN:- 2015.3570AAAABP7683

Anion Chattedee
Director
DIN :00200443

Place : Mumbai
Date : 07-12-2020

For SPECIALITY HOTELS IN

Indranil Chattimfee
Director
DIN :00200577

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
1 Significant Accounting Policies:
a Basis of Preparation of financial statements
The financal statements are prepared to comply in all material aspects under the Historical Cost
convention and in accordance with generally accepted. accounting principles (GAAP) in India and the
mandatory Accounting Standards prescribed tinder Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ('Act') read
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).
The Balance sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of cashflows and other statements and notes
thereto, have been prepared as per the requirements of Division I of Schedule Ill to the Act
b

Use of Esdmptes
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Management to make
estimates tilt, assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
income and expenses during the period.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the period in which changes are made and, If material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost Is computed on a weighted
average basis. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale
Finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition.

d

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents
includes Cash on hand and
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

f

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
Earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all potential equity shares.

For SPECIALITY HOTELS

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
g

Accounting for Taxes
telsgagggi
Current tax is the expectee tax payable/receivable on the taxable Income/loss for the year using applicable tax rates
at the Balance 2 Sheet date, and any adjuslment to taxes In respect of previous years. Interest expenses and
penalties. if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest
income, if any, related to Income tax is included In current tax expense.
.

Deterred tar
Deferred tax Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts wed for taxation purposes.
A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to ir extent that It is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
reccgnised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation-authority.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
The Company recognizes- MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there Is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for
which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT
credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement." The Company reviews the "MAT
credit entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company
does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

h

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognized when the company has a legal and constructive present obligation as a result of
a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimates can be made of the
amount of obligation. Disclosure for contingent liabilities are made when there is a possible obligation Or
present Obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. No provision is
recognized or disclosure for contingent liability is made when there Is a possible obligation or a present
obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent Asset are not recognised in
the financial statements since this may result In the recognition of income that may never be realised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset Is not a contingent
asset and is recognised.
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EVE') MARCH 31. 2020
11,511Altk ['Mira%
I. Authorised Sham I.

Amount In INI1

- :•11. -11.:;I:11

." -'

I

sit

.itg-,
..-c-tik ...i,•.;::

equily Marc; of 113P 100 ma with voting POO
At April 1,2021
InercaselOecteasi, : luring the year
At March 31, 2019
leureafelidectease; *dna the year
At Plat* A, 2020
IL Sued 'Subscribed and hair paid lip
beim tar is
. .rb:- • -St..--.94-,2;-,..;...". ; %-:" -"::::-',

'• - --T'T

sow

5.00.003

157

-

5,00000
5,00,000

5000

.

I

•

(Amount In I
^

.:'.-,1
1011rialikolLtav• 4t

At April], 2011
tuned Ourins the unread
Shares bowl% bat'.
Other /.10.-emot ytt
At Mardi 31, 2019
'Mini durng ihe penod
Shares bought beck
Other Movement elt
At March II, 2020

'1

ttliehertOSItm

.

1,000

1,00,000

1,000

.
1,00.000

•

•

1.000

1A0.000

.

•

vi. Details of sttatelboblers halals nore than 5% shares la the canon,

Eaudv "Ilea with vnting nghts
Eqwty S:aNs0111-11. 100 eaen fay paid
Ar.jan Chatte-yee
Surownha thaner)ci,
Hwang 3-attelee

tr.-.0041 Mana1,3020..
Number
411044Ing
1.00,000
2000

600
300
030

6E000
30000
113000

;
Number

batiks:. *on,
1000

600
300
100

1,03,000

60000
30000
10000
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE VD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3L 2020
WRNS/a wafts

. •

I. Refines and

$flnaji

..

%don/ (Dein() In State/nem of Profit and Loss

a) Surplus / 00600 In Slatement of PlIallt and loss
, :Th.T .
Onenin3 balance
Net Prolii/(Loss)(04 the wind
Oosing balance

cr(4nt.,.;4(

$140,10:-.
(157.334)

(2.S3.934)

(2.67,334)

(2,53.934

Inanit '

Amount MIN

(2.53.934)
(13.400)

(2,40,530)
(13,4001

12,67,134)

(241.9341

For SPECIALITY HOTELS INC

.;;

'A,

RECTOR

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2020
rriglitROWINGS
(Amount In MR)
'

't•Ii.

., % 'Filer . ,

cr.

Wag torn borrowing
Unsecured
Term Loan
I') From Banks
(II) From Other parties

Total
Shorttenn borrowing
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
(i)From Banks
Oil From Other Parties

MgIC
A IPTAT7.1:

• 1.09,242
1,09,242

98,042
98942

1 09 242

98:2

•
Total

-

For SPECIALITY HOTELS IND!

VATE

DIRECTOR

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2020

-14.atittaasn.Inar.r-;
Amount In INA
d."
7

14013 t;

IfJi
Millaat.2019

Long Term Liabilities
-

TradoPayabtes
Others

•
Other Current liabilities
Other payables

.

Total

58,092

For SPECIALITY HOTELS MI
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
5, OTHER EXPENSES
.. ,.. .

(Amount in INR)

, .. —

201049
.

PRItfillars

Payment it; Auditors (Refer Note a below)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

4,200

4,200

9,200

9,200

13,400

13,400
Amount In INR)

a Details of Pa ments to auditors

H .,:
As auditor
Audit Feu
In other capacity
Other services

; r`,'•"- i --..'

-.H:-'7':

7 .'.1)S1Plit:',.11.-: . .'-7;F:-;;;; 4018:49- .; -:
3,000

3,000
.

1,200
4200

1,200
4.200

For SPECIALITY HOTELS IN
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
6. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Amount In MR)

Pettit:WPM • .

MfirO1B1.200:44,41:.:14jideli.3&0311):.:..

(a) Basic earnings per share

(13.40)

(13.40

(13.40)

(13.40

(13.40)

113.40)

113,400)

(23.400)

From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders ot the company
From discontinuing operations attrioutable to me equity holders of the company
Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company
(b) Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
Total Diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company
Add: Interest savings on convertibte preference slates
Add. Interest savings on other Instruments
Profit from discontinuing operations
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating Diluted.
earnings per share
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average numbee of equity shares used as the denominatcr :n calculating basic
earnings per hare
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted earnings per share:
• Options
Convertible Ponds
Convertible Preference shares
Weighted average number of equity shams used as the denominator in calculating

•

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

Diluted earnings per share
The weigined average numver of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during
the year. There have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date
of authorisation of these financial statements.

Fot SPECIALITY HOTELS 1: ny:.

;ATE Le.!1!-::i:
,t,

DIRECTOR
.,,,‘ AA.: e•-.,

„,..__....., coN,
, • (...10:(4
\ 'AI\
(
ii3*--,/c- v-,...%.
.
urn
I .t ir•til-s.: ,
1
\ I.,. it lik Si'.
t' 11(
•.-

SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31.2020

As Per nanunting Standard 18. the enclosures al 0 441as:wen with
related parties ate given bekne:
MOO of Malan parties where vowel mins and related panics with whom tomsactions have law Axe and relationship.:

Anita Mall en
Restaurants Ltd

Key management gram
Camp:ens m when key management wean has egmlicalit control

Note atietesfrorhes now been Identsbect by Me Masogement end tea the AuCron
. .4,

t,ioti,1ett
AniasChanerlee

chs

: management PIMA

loan Received

10.400

10.400

balances at the and of
.,

;

ttarrotelnas

a

,•

OA

.

as,542
11035.142)

-

1.15.541.00
(L05,142.001'

NOte :PC1014010 *Of ARAMor.,in...entreeA banter
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RIVATE i ED
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SPECIALITY HOTELS INDIA PRIVATE LTD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOP: THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
•

OFRUES TO,MICRES AND Steal ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER lteCRO„SMAtt AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

. MED.ACT, 2006)
OintOPMEPIt ACT, 2006045

J...•
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006'
Interest accrued and due to supplies under MSMED Act, On the above amount
Payment made to :untidier' ( other than Interest ) beyond the appointed day
during the year
interest paid to suppliers under
/AWED Act, I other than
Section 16)
ProAt/(roa) before tax (i41)
interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already
made

•

•

•

-

-

-

.

.

.

.

*OTHER mores
In the opinion of the Board, all current assets, loans and advance are not less than of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary
course of business. Providon for airknown Estuaries nave been adecumtly provided for and are neither in excess nor short of the
&MOM resonably necessary.
The eccumulated tones of the Company at the yearmnd have eroded its Share Capital and Reserves. The Company also continues to
receive financial support groin its shareholders/directors.
Accordingly, she accounts of the Company hem been prepared on a going concern basis, which is dependent on the expected
Increase In business arid continued financial support from Its Shareholders/Directors.
10..prevaus year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary to conform to current Yeees
classification"

AS Per our report of even date &ached
For Gold Tejas Sr Co.
Firm Registration Member: 1351113W
thatered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Direr
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Arran Chatterjee
Director
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Indranil Chattedee
Director
DIN: 00200571

Place : Mumbai
Date: 07-12-2020
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